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COLLEGE’Ss MISSION

1) To advance the Art and Science of Medicine

2) To discuss Medical and Scientific problems

3) Toassistin providing post-graduate study courses for family physicians, and to encourage and assist practicing
family physicians in participating in such training

4) To arrange for and/or provide instruction by members of the College or other persons for undergraduate or
postgraduate students in family practice

5) To promote and maintain high standards of family practice of Medicine

6) To encourage and assist young men and women in preparing, qualifying and establishing themselves in
family practice

7) To preserve the right of the family physician to engage in medical and surgical procedures for which he is
qualified by training and experience

8) To provide, endow or support scholarships, lectureships, readerships, and professorships in subjects
appertaining to or associated with family practice

9) To give, grant, issue or bestow diplomas, certificates and other tokens and distinctions in recognition of
proficiency or attainment in family practice or in any subject cognate to family practice; any such tokens or
distinctions may be awarded upon examination or thesis or honoris causa

10) The College may acquire by purchase, hire, lease, or grant, or sell any movable or immovable properties in
furtherance of the objects of the College

11) To receive, borrow or invest money for any of the objects of the College

12) To do all such things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the foregoing objects or any of them
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PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 2011

Welcome to the Annual General Meeting 201 |.The Twenty-second Council has completed its term of office of
two years.The report of the work done is presented in the pages of this Annual Report.This being the election
year, a new Council is to be elected.

WORK OF THE TWENTY-SECOND COUNCIL (2009 -2011)

Membership

The membership of the College as of 31 March 201 | stood at 1407 compared to 1368 two years ago.There has
been an addition of 23 Fellows and Honorary Fellows and 4 Collegiate members to the College membership
list. In the two years, the number of MMed(FM) holders has increased from 297 in 2009 to 321 as of March
2011, an addition of 24 holders.The number of GDFM holders has increased from 434 in 2009 to 492 as of
March 201 1, an addition of 58 holders.

Assets
As of 31 March 2011, the College’s cash and cash equivalents stand at $3,965,183 as compared to $3,262,732

a year ago.

Courses conducted

In the two years under review, the College conducted 12 skills courses, and 8 modules of the modular courses.
Thanks are due to the many resource persons, speakers, chairpersons, tutors,and trainers in the various educational
activities. The College would not be able to do without these people.

College publications

A total of || issues of the Singapore Family Physician have been produced during the two years under review.
Since 2009, the Singapore Family Physician is in the Western Pacific Region Index Medicus (WPRIM).A total of
8 issues of the College Mirror, and 3 issues of the College Digest were produced during the two years under
review. Thanks are due to the many contributors to the College publications.

Research related activities

In 2010, the College hosted the 2nd Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference with |16 paid participants.
The Fellowship by Assessment Classes hosted two workshops on research skills, and each candidate produced
3 clinical reviews, and a research project each as part of the course work.

RELATIONSHIPS

The College enjoyed good relationship and collegiality with the Ministry of Health, Ministry of Community
Development, Youth and Sports, Health Promotion Board, Singapore Medical Council, Singapore Medical
Association and the Academy of Medicine. It also enjoyed good fraternity with colleagues in the restructured
hospitals, the Polyclinic clusters and GP clinics. The synergy was particularly strong between the College and
these stakeholders during the HINI outbreak which occurred in April to August of 2009.

THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND SECRETARIAT

Much of the achievement of the two years was made possible by a synergistic College Council and hardworking
College Secretariat.The membership has also been supportive of the efforts of the College in vocational training
and continuing professional development. Let me take this opportunity to thank the Executive Committee,
members of the retiring Council,and members of the College Secretariat for the contributions they have made
to the College in the last two years.

ELECTIONS
This Annual General Meeting will also be electing its next College Council for 2011 —2013.

NOTE OF APPRECIATION

To one and all, thank you for the support and encouragement throughout the last two years of my term as
President. It has been a pleasure serving the College Council and College membership.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

President, 22nd Council (2009-2011)
College of Family Physicians Singapore
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REPORT OF THE 22ND CouNciIL (2009-2011)

FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Members of the 22nd Council (2009-201 1) with FM Convocation Guests

(Standing L-R)

Dr Michael Wong, Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan (Honorary Secretary), Dr Tham Tat Yean, Dr Goh Choon Kee Shirley,
Dr Rukshini Puvanendran, Dr Lim Fong Seng (Honorary Treasurer), Dr Leong Choon Kit, Dr Eu Tieng Juoh Wilson,
Dr Tan Tze Lee (Honorary Editor), Dr Chow Mun Hong.

(Sitting L-R)

Dr Lee Suan Yew (Past President), A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean (Albert & Mary Lim Award Recipient), A/Prof
Lee Kheng Hock (Vice President), A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow (Censor-in-Chief), Prof K Satku (Guest-of-Honour),
A/Prof Goh Lee Gan (President), Prof Claire Jackson (President of RACGP¥), Dr Jennifer Kendrick (Censor-
in-Chief of RACGP*), A/Prof Jan Radford (Immediate Past Censor-in-Chief of RACGP*), Dr Cheng Heng Lee
(Albert & Mary Lim Award Recipient).

The 22nd Council was formed following the Annual General Meeting and election of office bearers of the Council

and its members on 27 June 2009.

* RACGP —The Royal Australian College of General Practitioners

5

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011




ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES: RECIPIENTS OF AWARDS/GRADUATES (2010

Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine (GDFM)

The College would like to congratulate the following doctors who were successful in the 2010 GDFM examination.

l. Dr Andrew Epaphroditus Tay Swee Kwang 30. DrLilyKyin

2. Dr Chau Mo Yee 3l.  DrLimAngTee

3. Dr Chong Wai Mun 32.  DrLimYingTze Julia

4. Dr Chong Wee Min Justin 33. DrLoTong Jen

5. Dr Chow Yoke Kuan 34.  Dr LooYu Xian

6. Dr Chua Mingzhou John 35.  Dr Mahalingam Venkatesan Premdhevi
7. Dr Chung Pin Soon 36.  Dr Mark Hoo Kai Meng

8. Dr Estelle Ch'ng 37.  Dr Neelakshi Dilmini Kalambaarachchi
9. Dr Fong Qi Wei 38.  Dr Neesha D/O Maganlal
10.  Dr Geraldine Cheng Hua Yong 39.  Dr Ng Choon Yong Kenneth
I'l. Dr Goh Tze Chien Kelvin 40.  Dr Ng Ee Hsiang

12.  Dr Heng Kim Boon 41.  Dr Ng Mae Ling

3. Dr Janti Susanna Mrs Wong Hang Fah 42.  Dr Sim Huiging

14.  Dr Jayarajasingam Kesavaraj 43.  DrTan ChongWaiVincent
I5.  Dr Jeremy Lim Khim Yong 44.  DrTan HongWeng

16.  Dr Jimmy Chin Chee Ming 45.  DrTan Kaihui Colin

7. Dr John Antony Rozario 46.  DrTan Kheng Liang

8.  Dr Juan Sze Joo 47.  DrTan Sue May

19.  Dr Kong JingWen 48.  DrTan Swee Yen Alvin

20.  Dr Kong Kin Hou 49.  DrTan Zi Feng

21.  Dr KuanYi Hern Benjamin 50. DrToKa Chi

22.  Dr Lai Shanhui 5. DrWee Shi Hui Sharon

23.  Dr Law Kung How 52. DrWeeTze Chao

24.  Dr Lee Chau Hung 53.  DrWinThu

25.  Dr Lee Chi Keong 54.  DrWong HanYing

26.  Dr Lee Hsien Chieh 55.  DrYap Chee Mun

27.  Dr Lee Kim Kee 56.  DrYee Kah Leong

28.  Dr Leong Chui Ling Cindy 57.  DrYeeYenTing

29.  Dr Ler Gee Bueh 58.  DrYvonne Kwee Lee Fung
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Tutors of the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine Programme 2010-2012:

Dr Ang Lai Lai

Dr Chan Meng Huey Jason

Dr Chew Sze Mun

Dr Chia Tee Hien

Dr Chiam Yih Hsing John

Dr Chin Khong Ling

Dr Choo Kay Wee

Dr Chung Wai Hoong Irwin
Dr Chung Wei Pyng Clara

Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala
Dr Khemani Neeta Parshotam
Dr Koh Kheng Keah Philip

Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin

Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin

Dr Kurup Bina

Dr Lam Chih Chiang Benjamin
Dr Leong Choon Kit
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32.
33.
34.

Dr Lim Hui Ling

Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
Dr See Toh Kwok Yee

Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
Dr Shah Mitesh

Dr Sim Kok Ping

Dr Soh Hun Beng Lawrence
Dr Soh Soon Beng

Dr Soh Yew Chye Albert

Dr Tan Puay Wee Steve

Dr Tan Yew Sang

Dr Tham Tat Yean

Dr Wong Eu Joon Adrian
DrWong Tien Hua

Dr Yap Soo Kor Jason

Dr Yeo Kwee Kee Anne

Dr Yong Molly

Master of Medicine (Family Medicine) [MMed(FM)]

The College congratulates the 24 doctors who were successful in the 2010 MMed(FM) examinations.

Dr Chan Hian HuiVincent
Dr Thulasi D/O Chandran
Dr Eng Soo Kiang

Dr Ho Boon Hor

Dr Kwok Wai Wan

Dr Jean Jasmin Lee Mi Li
Dr Lee Oh Chong Leng
Dr Lim lvy

Dr Low Sher Guan

Dr Low KangYih

Dr Low Wymin

Dr Ng Lok Pui
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I5.
16.
17.
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22.
23.
24.

Dr Sarina Omar

Dr Ong Luan Seng Desmond
Dr Peh Tan Ying

Dr Dharshini Puvanendran
Dr Subramaniam Surajkumar
Dr Tan Hwee Mian

Dr Tan HuiYun

Dr Tan Yee Leng

Dr Tay Wei Yi

Dr Teo Boon See

Dr Franco Wong Pey Gein
DrYeo Cheng Hsun Jonathan
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Award of The Collegiate Membership of the College of
Family Physicians Singapore [MCFP(S)]

College congratulates the following 8 doctors who fulfilled the requirements of the Collegiate Membership and were given

the award of MCFP(S).

Dr Ang Lai Lai

Dr Ang Seng Bin

Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace

Dr Lam Chih Chiang Benjamin

HwnN -
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Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
Dr Seah Ee-Jin Darren

Dr Tan Hsien Yung David
Dr Tan ShuYun

Award of Fellow of The College of Family Physicians Singapore

[FCFP(S)]

The College congratulates the following doctors who were conferred with the Fellowship in 2010.

Dr Juliana Bahadin

Dr Chong Tsung Wei

Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin
Dr Lee SuehYing Patricia
Dr Ng Chee Chin David

Dr Ng Han Lip Raymond
Dr Quah Hui Min Joanne

Nouvhwh -
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10.
I
12.
13.

Dr Tan Kok Heng Adrian

Dr Tan Woei Jen Michelle

Dr Teoh Mei Lin

Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala
Dr Wong Kay Wye Sabrina

Dr Yap Soo Kor Jason
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Albert and Mary Lim Award

A/lProf Cheong Pak Yean

Dr Cheng Heng Lee

The Albert and Mary Lim Award first presented in 1974 in memory of the late Dr Albert Lim Liat Juay and his wife Mary
Lim was re-instituted in 1999.

This award is the highest accolade bestowed by the College for contribution and services rendered to the College and the
discipline of family medicine.

The recipients of this award for 2010 were A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean and Dr Cheng Heng Lee.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT /7 MEDICAL EDUCATION
PROGRAMMES AND COURSES

The College promotes Continuing Professional Development (CPD) and Continuing Medical Education (CME) through the
Family Medicine Modular Course, Family Practice Skills Course, MMed (Family Medicine) Programme B, Family Medicine
Membership and Fellowship Programme.

The Institute of Family Medicine (IFM), an organ within the College, plays a significant role in developing the contents and syllabi
of these programmes and courses.

During the year the IFM reviewed, updated and edited the notes as well as their e-learning components for Modules 8, |, 2 and
3 of the Family Medicine Modular Course to make them more relevant and user-friendly to the course participants

The Family Medicine Modular Course consists of 8 modules of knowledge acquisition and is a requirement for doctors who
are preparing for the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine (GDFM) Programme and the Master of Medicine (Family Medicine)

Programme A. Each year, four modules are covered.

The notes for the modules are on the College’s e-learning website and can be downloaded by the Family Medicine trainees.
By having them online, the trainees can refer to these notes twenty-four hours a day

For the year April 2010 - March 201 I, there were 102 trainees registered in the GDFM course, 8 trainees in the MMed (FM)
Programme B.

Family Practice Skills Course (FPSC)

During this financial year, the College conducted seven Family Practice Skills Courses.

Table 1. Participation at Continuing Medical Education Activities (April 2010 - March 2011)

No. of Doctors Passed / Attended

Event Title Distance Learning Seminars/Workshop | Seminars/Workshop 2
FPSC 35 Passed: 381 Seminar I: 73 Seminar 2: 70
Vaccinations 2010: What’s Old, What’s New Workshop 1: 52 Workshop 2: 49
FPSC 36

Cardiovascular Disease, Risk Factors Passed: 296 Seminar |: 104 Seminar 2: 83
and Consequences Workshop |: 86 Workshop 2: 70
FPSC 37 Passed: 525 Seminar |: - Seminar 2: -
Primary Care Mental Health Workshop |: - Workshop 2: -
FPSC 38 Passed: 579 Seminar I: 113 Seminar 2: 93
Management of Family Violence Workshop |: 103 Workshop 2: 87
FPSC 39 Passed: 575 Seminar |: 57 Seminar 2: 39
Oral Health in Primary Care Workshop 1: 41 Workshop 2: 28
FPSC 40 Passed: 464 Seminar I: 50 Seminar 2: 45
On-line Notifications and E-Services Platforms Workshop 1: 54 Workshop 2: 41
FPSC 41 Passed: 514 Seminar |: 83 Seminar 2: 66

Management of Functional Decline in Older Adults

Workshop 1: 78

Workshop 2: 62

The components of a skills course may include one or more of the following:

Workshops (max. of | CME point)

LA W —

Distance Learning with verification (6 CME points)
Seminars (max. of 2 CME points per seminar)

Small group activities including clinical attachments, tutorials, ward-rounds
Assessments which can be written, oral, demonstration and/or clinical (for some courses)

A typical FPSC template is a course with six units of distance learning with verification of 30 MCQs, two seminars and one workshop
conducted over two afternoon sessions e.g., one Saturday afternoon and Sunday afternoon or two Saturday afternoons.
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E-Learning

The E-Learning programme launched in 2003 has been incorporated into the GDFM training programme. An E-Learning
component for each module was introduced, consisting of therapeutic notes, case scenarios, assessment by MCQs and a case
review to be put up by a tutorial group.

Accreditation of core CME points

The College is represented by A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock and Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan in the Singapore Medical Council
(SMC). Maintenance of Competency Committee and Dr Tan Tze Lee and Dr Leong Choon Kit in the SMC CME Co-ordinating
Committee. The College works closely with the Singapore Medical Council to ensure that the quality of the CME events is
acceptable. It continues to advise the SMC on the accreditation of core family medicine CME events through its panel of Family
Medicine(FM) CME advisors appointed by the College.

Table 2. Overview of CME Applications Received in Year 2010 (Category 1B)

For Year 2010
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
CORE 19 40 28 44 35 62 22 22 26 ] 21 21 351
NON CORE - - - - 5 [ 2 3 | - 4 | 17
REJECT | - - | 2 - 8 3 2 | - | 19
Total Application 20 40 28 45 42 63 32 28 29 12 25 23 387

FM CME Assessors Board (2008-201 )

Chairman : DrTay Ee Guan

Members : Dr Matthew Ng
Dr Loke Kam Weng
Dr Tan Ngiap Chuan
Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
Dr Low Mun Heng Gerard

Panel of FM CME Advisors (2008-2010)

I AJProf Lim Lean Huat 21.  Dr Leong Choon Kit

2. Dr Bina Kurup 22.  Dr Lim Hui Ling

3. Dr Chan Swee Mong Paul 23.  Dr Lim Kah Choo Carol

4. Dr Chang MingYu James 24.  Dr Lim Lee Min Dale

5. Dr Chang Tou Liang 25.  Dr LingYee Kiang

6. Dr Chew Sze Mun 26.  Dr Loh Wee Tiong Alfred
7. Dr Chia Tee Hien 27.  Dr Ng Chee Lian Lawrence
8. Dr Colin Ngeow 28.  Dr Poon Beng Hoong

9. Dr Chong Chun Hon 29.  Dr Rukshini Puvanendran
10.  Dr Chiong Peck Koon Gabriel 30.  Dr Siaw Tung Yeng

Il. Dr Goh Khean Teik 31.  DrTan Boon Yeow

12. Dr Goh Lay Hoon 32.  DrTan Kok Heng Adrian
13. Dr Huan MengWah 33.  DrTham Tat Yean

14.  Dr Kalaimamani Kanagasabai 34.  DrThng Lip Mong Barry
15. Dr Khemani Neeta Parshotam 35. DrWong Fook Meng Wilson
16.  Dr Koh Choon Huat Gerald 36. DrWong See Hong

17.  Dr Kwan Yew Seng 37. DrWongTien Hua

18.  Dr Kwong Kum Hoong 38.  DrYap Soo Kor Jason

19.  Dr Lee MunTuck 39.  DrYii Hee Seng

20.  Dr Lee SuehYing Patricia 40. DrYong Molly

The Approved Training Centres (ATC) for Family Medicine are:
I.  College of Family Physicians Singapore
2. Singhealth Polyclinics
3. National Healthcare Group (NHG) Polyclinics
4. Department of Family Medicine Continuing Care, Singapore General Hospital
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COLLEGE MIRROR

In the year under review, the College Mirror continued in its mission of putting together timely news to update the family
doctor fraternity, under the leadership of Dr Eu Tieng Juoh Wilson and Dr Wong Tien Hua and their editorial teams.

The College Digest as an e-newsletter is into its second year of production. It continues to serve the objectives of covering
the time space between the quarterly College Mirror issues. More importantly, it has a practice management focus in mind
-- practice news around the College, practice notes, practice information and a call from the editorial team. College thanks the
work of the three editors in this publication: Dr Eu Tieng Juoh Wilson, Dr Leong Choon Kit and Dr Wong Tien Hua.

SIGNIFICANT COLLEGE EVENTS

Commencement of Academic Year 2010

The Commencement Ceremony was held on 26 June 2010 at College of Medicine Building.

There were 102 trainees in the GDFM course, 19 trainees in the MMed (FM) Programme A, and 8 trainees in the MMed (FM)
Programme B.

Convocation 2010

The Family Medicine Convocation Ceremony was held on 28 November 2010 and the Guest-of-Honour was Prof K Satku.
The special invited guests to the Convocation were Professor Claire Jackson (President, RACGP), Dr Jennifer Kendrick
(Censor-in-Chief, RACGP) and Professor Jan Radford (Immediate Past Censor-in-Chief, RACGP) to witness the adoption of
the Memorandum on reciprocal recognition of the FRACGP and FCFP(S) between The Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners and the College of Family Physicians, Singapore.

13 doctors were conferred the FCFP(S), 8 doctors were conferred the MCFP(S).

58 GDFM graduates and 24 MMed (FM) graduates were recognised.

Annual General Meeting 2010

The College AGM was held on 26 June 2010.The minutes have been circulated.

CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd

The CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd was formed as a company to purchase, hold and manage the property or properties for the College
and this was incorporated on 23 March 2009.

The Board of Directors:
Executive Chairman : DrTan Chin Lock Arthur (wef 3 Sep 2010)
Executive Directors : A/Prof Lim Lean Huat

: DrTan See Leng

Non-Executive Directors  : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
: Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan (wef 27 Jun 2009)
: Dr Lim Fong Seng

The background is that the College Building Committee was formed in July 2008 to advise the Council on acquiring a property
or properties for investment or for use by the College. Dr Tan See Leng was the chairman of the committee. The members
were Dr Tan Chin Lock Arthur and A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock.The advisors were Dr Lee Suan Yew and A/Prof Goh Lee Gan.

A property at 7 Cantonment Road Singapore 089734 was subsequently purchased in 2009. This completed the terms of
reference of the Building Committee and CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd was set up on 23 March 2009 to manage this property.
A Board of Directors was appointed under the terms of reference of CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd.
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COUNCIL INITIATIVES

During its term of office from 2009 to 201 I, the Council had the following tasks in mind: strengthening the recognition and
equitable worth of the family doctors; implementing the accredited modular course programme for senior family doctors;
and making ‘right-siting’ (Shared Care) work for family doctors.

On a larger platform, it has also promoted the level of recognition of scholarly activity by having the Singapore Family
Physician joining WPRIM; as well as promoting primary care research. Council has also worked on the reciprocal recognition
of the FRACGP and the FCFPS.

Council has also promoted the standard of practice through the initiatives of the practice management committee and the
family practice skills courses.

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES

The College has participated in the review and endorsement of the CPGs issued by MOH.They are:

Year 2011

Chronic Hepatitis B Infection. Published: Mar 201 |

Screening for Cardiovascular Disease and Risk Factors. Published: Mar 201 |
Clinical Blood Transfusion. Published: Feb 201 |

Year 2010

Heat Injury. Published: Oct 2010

Management of Food Allergy. Published: June 2010

Functional Screening for Older Adults in the Community. Published: June 2010
Autism Spectrum Disorders in Pre-School Children. Published: Mar 2010
Management of Rhinosinusitis and Allergic Rhinitis. Published: Feb 2010
Cancer Screening. Published: Feb 2010

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The 22nd Council deeply appreciates and is grateful for the collaboration, support and sponsorship extended towards the
College by:

e Boehringer Ingelheim

*  Glaxo Smith Kline Pte Ltd

*  Health Promotion Board

*  Health Sciences Authority

*  Ministry of Community Development,Youth and Sports

*  Ministry of Health

e Ministry of Manpower

The Council also acknowledges with deepest appreciation the invaluable advice and assistance rendered by:
*  Our panel of Honorary Legal Advisors: Mr Edwin Tong and Mr Lek Siang Pheng
*  Our Honorary Auditor:V. P. Kumaran

All that the College had achieved in the past year could not have happened without the many willing hands and selfless hearts
of our tutors, examiners, editorial board members of our various publications, committee members and specialist colleagues.

Of course, we must not forget our great and able staff at the College Secretariat that has helped us in all our work.

Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
Honorary Secretary

22nd Council (2009-201 1)

College of Family Physicians Singapore
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF CENSORS
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Censor-in-Chief : A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow

Censors : A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock
: Dr Loke Kam Weng

Advisors : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

: DrTan Chee Beng

INTRODUCTION

2010 has been a fruitful year for the Censors Board as we spearheaded the interactions with The Royal Australian College
of General Practitioners (RACGP) over the Reciprocity issue. The Censor-in-Chief of the 2 colleges exchanged notes on the
respective College’s training programs as well as flew over to observe and view the conduct of examinations and the training
facilities of the individual colleges.

The exchanges culminated in the signing of the reciprocity on 6 October 2010 in Cairns at the RACGP convocation
ceremony.

This feat would not have been possible but for the high standards and rigor of the educational programs that College has
upheld over the years.This was made possible by the foresight and tenacity of our leaders (both past and present); the hours
of yeoman service by the supervisor and trainers; as well as the commitment and hard work of the trainees.

The College Censors Board will strive to improve the training and recognition of our fellow colleagues in the field of family
medicine with the ultimate goal of achieving better care for our patients.

MEMBERSHIP

Membership of our College now stands at |,407 members as of 31 March 2011 compared to 1,421 members in the previous
year.The distribution by grade of membership for the last three years are also shown below:

Membership Category 2009 2010 2011
Honorary Fellows 10 Il I
Fellows 73 82 95
Collegiate Members 132 144 134
Ordinary Members 997 1,020 1,007
Associate Members 129 164 118
Overseas Members - - 6
Retired Members - - 36
Total 1,368 1,421 1,407

COMMENCEMENT OF THE ACADEMIC YEAR
The Commencement of the academic year for 201 | will take place at the Shaw Foundation Alumni House, National University
of Singapore (NUS), on 25 June 201 1.
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GRADUATE DIPLOMA OF FAMILY MEDICINE (GDFM)

The Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine (GDFM) is a vocational training certification for primary care doctors.The aim of
this 2-year part-time trainee programme is to train primary care doctors to practise Family Medicine at an enhanced level
to meet the needs of the child, the adolescent, the adult and the elderly.The course emphasises on basic clinical, diagnostic and
management skills essential to general practice.

The programme is planned to accommodate the busy doctor’s schedule as almost all courses that require in-person attendance

are conducted outside regular office hours.The course consists of the following:

. 8 modules of Family Medicine Modular Course (FMMC) with each comprising of 4 workshops (2 1/2 hours each),
| tutorial (I hour each), online case studies and multiple choice assessments

. 3 Practice Management Courses (16 hours in all) and | elective Family Practice Skills Course (6 hours)

The examination is conducted by Division of Graduate Medical Studies (DGMS), National University of Singapore (NUS).The

standard set is a pass in all three segments:

. Written paper | - Applied Knowledge Test: |00 MCQ questions (2 hours)

. Written Paper Il - Key Features Problems (KFP): 10 questions (I hour)

. Skills Assessment in the Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) - 10 stations of | | minutes each, comprising
3 minutes for reading and 8 minutes for assessment (2 hours)

The GDFM(NUS) is a title or qualification approved by the Singapore Medical Council for display by Registered Medical
Practitioners.

The 9th GDFM Examination was held on 25 June 2010 for the written papers and 3 - 4 July 2010 for the OSCE.A total of

58 of the 80 candidates passed, giving a passing rate of 72.5% for the GDFM Examination 2010.The Censors Board, which
was the Examination Board, vetted and finalised all the questions.

The following candidates passed the GDFM Examination 2010:

l. Dr Andrew Epaphroditus Tay Swee Kwang 30.  DrLilyKyin

2. Dr Chau Mo Yee 3l.  DrLimAngTee

3. Dr Chong Wai Mun 32.  Dr LimYingTze Julia

4. Dr Chong Wee Min Justin 33.  DrLoTongJen

5. Dr Chow Yoke Kuan 34.  Dr LooYu Xian

6. Dr Chua Mingzhou John 35.  Dr Mahalingam Venkatesan Premdhevi
7. Dr Chung Pin Soon 36.  Dr Mark Hoo Kai Meng

8. Dr Estelle Ch’ng 37.  Dr Neelakshi Dilmini Kalambaarachchi
9. Dr Fong Qi Wei 38. Dr Neesha D/O Maganlal
10.  Dr Geraldine Cheng Hua Yong 39.  Dr Ng Choon Yong Kenneth
Il. Dr Goh Tze Chien Kelvin 40.  Dr Ng Ee Hsiang

2. Dr Heng Kim Boon 41.  Dr Ng Mae Ling

I13.  Dr Janti Susanna Mrs Wong Hang Fah 42.  Dr Sim Huiging

14.  Dr Jayarajasingam Kesavaraj 43.  DrTan Chong WaiVincent
I5.  Dr Jeremy Lim Khim Yong 44.  DrTan HongWeng

16.  Dr Jimmy Chin Chee Ming 45.  DrTan Kaihui Colin

7. Dr John Antony Rozario 46.  DrTan Kheng Liang

I18.  Dr Juan Sze Joo 47.  DrTan Sue May

19.  Dr Kong Jing Wen 48.  DrTan Swee Yen Alvin

20.  Dr Kong Kin Hou 49. DrTan Zi Feng

21.  Dr KuanYi Hern Benjamin 50. DrTo Ka Chi

22.  Dr Lai Shanhui 51.  DrWee Shi Hui Sharon

23.  Dr Law Kung How 52. DrWeeTze Chao

24.  Dr Lee Chau Hung 53.  DrWinThu

25.  Dr Lee Chi Keong 54.  DrWong HanYing

26.  Dr Lee Hsien Chieh 55.  DrYap Chee Mun

27.  Dr Lee Kim Kee 56.  DrYee Kah Leong

28.  Dr Leong Chui Ling Cindy 57. DrYeeYenTing

29.  Dr Ler Gee Bueh 58.  DrYvonne Kwee Lee Fung

As of 31 March 2011, there were a total of 492 doctors with GDFM qualification.
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The Censors Board would like to thank the following tutors for their contributions:

Course Director

For 2010-2012 intake

Dr Kwong Kum Hoong I Dr Ang Lai Lai
2. Dr Chan Meng Huey Jason
For 2009-2011 intake 3. Dr Chew Sze Mun
I Dr Ang Seng Bin 4. Dr Chia Tee Hien
2. Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace 5. Dr Chiam Yih Hsing John
3. Dr Chng Shih Kiat 6. Dr Chin Khong Ling
4. Dr Chong Tsung Wei 7. Dr Choo Kay Wee
5. Dr Goh Khean Teik 8. Dr Chung Wai Hoong Irwin
6. Dr Kwan Yew Seng 9. Dr Chung Wei Pyng Clara
7. Dr Kwek Hwei Min 10.  Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala
8. Dr Lee Biing Ming Simon 1. Dr Khemani Neeta Parshotam
9. Dr Lee Eng Sing 12.  Dr Koh Kheng Keah Philip
10.  Dr Lee Meng Kam Richard 3. Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin
Il. Dr Lee MunTuck 14.  Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin
12.  Dr Loh Wai Leong Jeffrey I15. Dr Kurup Bina
13.  Dr Loke Kam Weng 16.  Dr Lam Chih Chiang Benjamin
14, Dr Low Cheng Hong Charity 7. Dr Leong Choon Kit
15.  Dr Low Sze Sen 18.  Dr Lim Hui Ling
16.  Dr Marie Stella P Cruz 19.  Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
17. Dr Ng Lee Beng 20.  Dr See Toh Kwok Yee
18.  Dr Ngeow Colin 21.  Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
19.  Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan 22.  Dr Shah Mitesh
20.  Dr Phua Cheng Pau Kelvin 23.  Dr Sim Kok Ping
21.  Dr Seah Ee-Jin Darren 24.  Dr Soh Hun Beng Lawrence
22.  Dr Siew Chee Weng 25.  Dr Soh Soon Beng
23.  Dr Somasundram Pushparanee 26.  Dr SohYew Chye Albert
24.  DrTan Choon Seng Gilbert 27.  DrTan Puay Wee Steve
25.  DrTan Hsien Yung David 28.  DrTanYew Sang
26.  DrTan Kok Heng Adrian 29. Dr Tham Tat Yean
27.  DrTanTeck Shi 30. DrWong Eu Joon Adrian
28.  DrTanWoei Jen Michelle 31.  DrWongTien Hua
29.  DrTeoh Mei Lin 32.  DrYap Soo Kor Jason
30. DrWongTed Min 33.  DrYeo Kwee Kee Anne
31.  DrYee Jenn Jet Michael 34.  DrYong Molly

MASTER OF MEDICINE (FAMILY MEDICINE) [MMed(FM)]

There are currently two programmes to prepare doctors for the MMed(FM) examinations.

Programme A
Programme A is for applicants who are fully or conditionally registered with Singapore Medical Council (SMC) and are
awarded sponsorship by the health clusters after choosing Family Medicine as the specialty.

The New syllabus from May 2007 features more posting for trainees to gain wider exposure to various specialties to help
the family physician.

Note:With effect from 2011, Programme A is organised into a 3-year Residency Program.The first intake nationally is 26
[10 in Singhealth, 10 in National Healthcare Group (NHG) and 6 in National University Health System (NUHS)].

Programme B is a structured training programme designed for mature practicing family physicians in Singapore. Programme
B is jointly organised by the College of Family Physicians Singapore and the DGMS, NUS.This |-year part-time course provides
a comprehensive and structured training programme for doctors working in primary care who have completed the 8 modules
of the Family Medicine Modular Course (FMMC) to prepare them to sit for the MMed(FM) examinations.

The course participants from both the Programmes sit for the same examination — namely, the MMed(FM) examination
conducted by the DGMS, NUS.

16

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011




This examination consists of:

. Written papers — Paper | consisting of 4 questions: evolving scenario question, two SAQ, and a health talk question;
Paper 2 consisting of 120 MCQs; Paper 3 consisting of slide interpretation paper of 30 slides

. Oral examination — | practice profile, 5 case commentaries and | audit project; Oral interview

. Clinical examination

The 20th Master of Medicine (Family Medicine) Examination was held on 8-9 November 2010 (Written), and 10 November
2010 (Oral) and 13-14 November 2010 (Clinical). Of the 28 candidates who sat for the examination, 24 were successful.
They were:

I Dr Chan Hian HuiVincent 3. Dr Sarina Omar

2. Dr Thulasi D/O Chandran 14.  Dr Ong Luan Seng Desmond
3. Dr Eng Soo Kiang 5. Dr PehTanYing

4. Dr Ho Boon Hor 6. Dr Dharshini Puvanendran
5. Dr Kwok Wai Wan 7. Dr Subramaniam Surajkumar
6. Dr Jean Jasmin Lee Mi Li 18.  DrTan Hwee Mian

7. Dr Lee Oh Chong Leng 19.  DrTan HuiYun

8. Dr Lim Ivy 20. DrTanYee Leng

9. Dr Low Sher Guan 21.  DrTayWeiYi

10.  Dr Low KangYih 22.  DrTeo Boon See

I'l. Dr Low Wymin 23.  Dr Franco Wong Pey Gein
12. Dr Ng Lok Pui 24.  DrYeo Cheng Hsun Jonathan

As of 31 March 201 [, there were a total of 321 doctors with MMed(FM) qualification.

The Censors Board would like to thank the following supervisors and tutors for their contributions:

For 2010-201 1 intake

Supervisors

I Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian
2. Dr Siew Chee Weng
Tutors

. Dr Chng Shih Kiat

2. Dr Lee Meng Kam Richard
3. Dr Ng Lee Beng

4 Dr Tan Shu Yun

THE AWARD OF MCFP(S) TO MMED(FM) HOLDERS WHO FULFILL CRITERIA
In 2010, 8 applicants were awarded the Collegiate Membership of the College of Family Physicians Singapore [MCFP(S)] .
The criteria for the award were as follows:

. Be a member of College of Family Physicians Singapore for at least 2 years.

*  Possess the Masters of Medicine (Family Medicine) degree awarded by the National University of Singapore.

. Be active in attending CME and has been certified by SMC for the past 2 years.

. Be actively involved in teaching Family Medicine and College Activities (e.g. postgraduate training, undergraduate teaching
in Family Medicine and tutorship in the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine programme) for at least a year.

The MCFP(S) were awarded to the following members:

| Dr Ang Lai Lai

2 Dr Ang Seng Bin

3. Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace

4. Dr Lam Chih Chiang Benjamin

Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
Dr Seah Ee-Jin Darren

Dr Tan Hsien Yung David
Dr Tan ShuYun

© N o

As of 31 March 201 [, there were a total of 180 Collegiate members.
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FELLOWS OF THE COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS [FCFP(S)]

The Fellowship Award by assessment is the highest qualification for family physicians in Singapore. This programme was
started in 1988. Potential candidates for this award must successfully complete a demanding two year assessment programme
and an exit viva voce examination.

To be in this programme the applicant must:
. Have Collegiate Membership of the College of Family Physicians Singapore

. Possess the MMed(FM) or the MCGP (Singapore) or equivalent qualifications; the acceptance of equivalent qualifications
has to be approved by the Censors’ Board

. Have embarked on personal professional development and training related to family medicine

. Be actively involved in postgraduate training and undergraduate education in family medicine

. Be in active clinical practice

. Be of sound professional and personal character

The following were successful Fellows by assessment and received their Fellowship conferment in 2010 (9th cohort).

I. Dr Juliana Bahadin 8. DrTan Kok Heng Adrian

2. Dr ChongTsung Wei 9. DrTanWoei Jen Michelle

3. Dr KohWee Boon Kelvin 10. DrTeoh Mei Lin

4.  Dr Lee Sueh Ying Patricia I'l.  Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala
5. Dr Ng Chee Chin David 12. DrWong Kay Wye Sabrina

6.  Dr Ng Han Lip Raymond 13. DrYap Soo Kor Jason

7. Dr Quah Hui Min Joanne

As of 31 March 201 1, there were a total of 98 Fellows.

The Censors Board would like to thank the following advisors, supervisors and assistant supervisors for their contributions:

For 2009-201 | intake

Advisors
l. A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
2. A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock

Supervisors

l. Dr Chow Mun Hong

2. Dr Ng Joo Ming Matthew
3. Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian

Assistant Supervisors

l. Dr Goh Lay Hoon

2. Dr Tsou Yu Kei Keith

3. Dr Tan Kok Heng Adrian
4 Dr Ng Han Lip Raymond

THE CONFERMENT OF THE FCFP(S) AND MCFP(S)

The conferment ceremony was conducted at the College Convocation which was held on 28 November 2010.The Guest-of-
Honour at the conferment was Prof K Satku.

ALBERT AND MARY LIM AWARD
This year the recipients of this prestigious award were A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean and Dr Cheng Heng Lee.

CONCLUSION

We would like to thank the Censors Board, the Institute of Family Medicine and the College Secretariat for another year of
dedicated service to the College and academic programmes.

A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow

Censor-in-Chief
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REPORT OF THE INSTITUTE OF FAMILY MEDICINE (IFM)
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Chairman
Members

: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

: Dr Kwong Kum Hoong

: Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian

: Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
: DrTanTze Lee

: DrWongTien Hua

The objectives of the Institute of Family Medicine are to develop and conduct courses for vocational training of the family
doctor and for the continuing professional development of family doctors.

The Family Medicine Modular Course

The Family Medicine Modular Course consists of 8 modules of study over two years. Each year four modules are covered.

Table 1. Family Medicine Modular Courses Conducted from April 2010 to March 2011

Module Training Period Year | Trainees Year 2 Trainees AMC for FP Register Total
8 04 Apr —24 Apr 10 117 122 0 239
| 07 Aug — 28 Aug 10 110 131 6 247
2 06 Nov — 27 Nov 10 125 115 22 262
3 12 Feb — 26 Feb 11 125 115 36 276
Module 8:
10 Apr 10 (Sat) M8I.1:Antenatal care — Dr Yap Lip Kee

M81.2: Medical disorders in pregnancy — Dr Tan Thiam Chye

Chairperson: Dr Marie Stella P Cruz, Dr Julian Lim

Asst chairperson: Dr Wong Tien Hua
I'1 Apr 10 (Sun) M81.3: Complications in pregnancy — Dr Douglas Ong

M81.4: Postnatal care — Dr Tan Thiam Chye

Chairperson: Dr Siew Chee Weng, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Asst chairperson: Dr Kelvin Phua
17 Apr 10 (Sat) M82.1: Acute musculoskeletal problems — Dr Yue Wai Mun

M82.2: Chronic musculoskeletal problems — Dr Law Weng Giap

Chairperson: A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean, Dr Jason Yap

Asst chairperson: Dr Lily Aw
24 Apr 10 (Sat) M82.3:Acute neurological problems — Dr Chong Piang Ngok

M82.4: Chronic neurological problems — Dr Ho King Hee

Chairperson: Dr Marie Stella P Cruz, Dr Winnie Soon

Asst chairperson: Dr Leong Choon Kit
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Module I:

07 Aug 10 (Sat) M1 1.1:Acute upper respiratory infections — Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian
M1 1.2: Acute lower respiratory infections — Dr Ong Kian Chung
Chairperson:A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Marie Stella P Cruz

14 Aug 10 (Sat) M1 1.3: Chronic cough, tuberculosis, & lung cancer — Dr Tan Tiong Har
MI1.4:Asthma & Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease — Dr Kong Po Mann
Chairperson: Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala, Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian

21 Aug 10 (Sat) MI2.1: Ear problems — Dr Luke Tan Kim Siang
M12.2: Nose and throat problems — Dr Mark Hon Wah Ignatius
Chairperson: Dr Juliana Bahadin, Dr Jason Yap
Asst chairperson: Dr How Choon How

28 Aug 10 (Sat) M12.3: Eye symptoms and acute conditions — Dr Tan Siang Hui Colin
M12.4: Eyelid problems and chronic eye conditions — Dr Lee Kuan Ming Llewellyn
Chairperson: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Kwong Kum Hoong
Asst chairperson: Dr How Choon How

Module 2:

06 Nov 10 (Sat) ~ M21I.1:Acute paediatric problems — A/Prof Quah Thuan Chong
M21.2: Developmental Paediatrics — Dr Janice WWong
Chairperson: Dr Julian Lim,A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Asst chairperson: Dr Irwin Chung

I3 Nov 10 (Sat) ~ M21.3:Adolescent health — Dr Mary Yang Hon Mee
M21.4: Behavioural Paediatrics — Dr Yeo Kah Loke Brian
Chairperson: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Ngeow Colin

20 Nov 10 (Sat) M22.1: Upper gastro-intestinal problems — Dr Ling Khoon Lin
M22.2: Lower gastro-intestinal problems — Dr Ang Tiing Leong
Chairperson: A/P Cheong Pak Yean, Dr Michael Wong
Asst chairperson: Dr Ang Seng Bin

27 Nov 10 (Sat)  M22.3: Hepatic problems — A/P Chow Wan Cheng
M22.4: Gallbladder and pancreatic problems — Dr Chow Kah Hoe Pierce
Chairperson: Dr Wong Ted Min, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Asst chairperson: Dr Darren Seah

Module 3:

12 Feb |1 (Sat) M31.1: Chronic disease management — Dr Jonathan Pang
M31.2: Hypertension — Dr Baldev Singh
Chairperson: Dr Loke Kam Weng, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

I3 Feb I'l (Sun) M31.3: Diabetes mellitus — Dr Tan Khai Tong
M31.4: Metabolic syndrome, Obesity and Dyslipidemias — A/P Sum Chee Fang
Chairperson: Dr Yap Soo Kor Jason,A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

19 Feb I'l (Sat) M32.1: Hematological problems — Dr Tan Hwee Huang
M32.2: Prevention & early detection of cancer — Dr Tan Yew Oo
Chairperson: Dr Julian Lim, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

26 Feb |1 (Sat) M32.3: Cancer management — Dr Poon Yew Hee Donald

M32.4: Palliative care — Dr Kok Jaan Yang
Chairperson: Dr Loke Kam Weng, Dr Tsou Yu Kei Keith
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Family Practice Skills Course (FPSC)

The Family Practice Skills Courses serve the continuing professional development needs of the General Practitioner / Family
Physician.We are able to run at least one course a quarter. See Table 2.

The components of a skills course may include one or more of the following:

Distance Learning with verification (6 CME points)

Seminars (max. of 2 CME points per seminar)

Workshops (max. of | CME point)

Small group activities including clinical attachments, tutorials, ward-rounds

Assessments which can be written, oral, demonstration and/or clinical (for some courses)

L wN —

A typical FPSC template is a course with six units of distance learning with verification of 30 MCQs, two seminars, and
one workshop conducted over two afternoon sessions e.g., one Saturday afternoon and Sunday afternoon or two Saturday
afternoons.

During the year the College conducted seven Family Practice Skills Courses.

Table 2. Participation in the Family Practice Skills Courses April 2010 to March 2011

No. of Doctors Passed / Attended

Event Title Distance Learning  Seminars/Workshop I Seminars/Workshop 2
FPSC 35 Passed: 381 Seminar 1:73 Seminar 2: 70
Vaccinations 2010:What’s Old,What's New Workshop 1:52 Workshop 2:49
FPSC 36 Passed: 296 Seminar |: 104 Seminar 2: 83
Cardiovascular Disease, Risk Factors and Consequences Workshop 1:86 Workshop 2:70
FPSC 37 Passed: 525 Seminar |:— Seminar 2: -
Primary Care Mental Health Workshop |:— Workshop 2: -
FPSC 38 Passed: 579 Seminar I: 113 Seminar 2: 93
Management of Family Violence Workshop |: 103 Workshop 2: 87
FPSC 39 Passed: 575 Seminar 1:57 Seminar 2: 39
Oral Health in Primary Care Workshop 1:41 Workshop 2:28
FPSC 40 Passed: 464 Seminar 1:50 Seminar 2: 45
On-line Notifications and E-Services Platforms Workshop 1:54 Workshop 2: 41
FPSC 41 Passed: 514 Seminar 1:83 Seminar 2: 66

Management of Functional Decline in Older Adults

Workshop 1:78

Workshop 2: 62

E-Learning

The E-Learning programme is a growing medium of CME activity delivery. Launched in 2003, it has been incorporated into the
GDFM training programme.An E-Learning component for each module was introduced, consisting of therapeutic notes, case
scenarios, assessment by MCQs and a case review to be put up by a tutorial group.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Director
Institute of Family Medicine
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REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Chairman : Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
Members : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

: A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock

: A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow

: Dr Lim Fong Seng

The secretariat headcount remains stable although we had to replace 2 staff. One of our former staff left to join SMU while
the other decided to start a family. WWe wish them all the best.We welcomed a new Administrative Executive (Programmes &
Training) and an Administrative Assistant.

They have since integrated well and form part of our very hardworking and diligent secretariat workforce.The rest of the staff
has been able to help the College co-ordinate the functions and duties in the delivery of the various training programmes and
Family Practice Skills Courses.

We endeavour to provide a high quality service to all our members and strive to assist all our members in their work and
requirements for CME training or other post-graduate training requirements.

The College continues to work closely with the various statutory boards and Ministries in the various programs.VWe wish
to thank everyone who has persevered and continue to help us in our daily work.We wish each and everyone who are our
members and those who have or will come into contact with us the best of health always!

Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan

Chairman
Administration Committee
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REPORT OF THE PRACTICE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Chair-person : Dr Leong Choon Kit
Members : Dr Alvin Ang Choon Kiat
: Dr Lee-Oh Chong Leng
Dr Peter Loke
Dr Raymond Nyam
: DrVictor Teo
: Dr EuTieng Juoh Wilson

One of the biggest challenges faced by the committee is the need to bring fellow members together, to hear them out, to support
them and to implement any of the suggestions.We are pleased to report that we were able to start a few small steps.

Town Hall Meetings

Our committee has decided to revive the town hall meetings held in the College previously. So far, we have conducted 3 of
them.The number of members attending was small but encouraging. There were some issues raised by the attendees and the
younger ones who attended have been ministered and appropriately advised.VWe hope to continue these meetings in the future
but in a more relaxed environment.

Lunch Meetings

These lunch gatherings were organised for the purpose of helping fellow GPs working in the same vicinity to know each other.
The atmosphere was cordial and relaxed.And these situations were conducive for building bridges between GPs and breaking
the ice between them.

Email Discussion Groups
Presently, we have set up 5 active email discussion groups of different maturity. Each group comprises 8 members of which 3
will play the role of moderators.This avenue allowed for more personal sharing and discussion of more sensitive topics.

One on One Visit

We have visited two colleagues at their newly established clinics as well as meeting up with a few younger colleagues who are
keen to start their own practice.We find this avenue the most useful as we are close to the ground and listen to their concerns
first-hand.We hope that we can do more of these visits.

Other Collaborations
With the purpose of supporting better practice management among ourselves, we have started the College Digest with our
College Mirror editors.We tried to bring up issues or ideas in short snippets for the busy FPs/GPs.

In September last year, together with the College Secretariat, we tried to bring some tangible benefits to our members by helping
to secure the newly launched iPads. The response was much better than expected and we were overwhelmed with orders.

Future
We would like to continue serving our members and help bring out the best of our members. We look forward to more
opportunities to work together for our common good with all of you.

Dr Leong Choon Kit

Chairman
Practice Management Committee

23

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011




REPORT OF THE PUBLICATIONS COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

in re Family Physician Journal
Honorary Editor : DrTanTze Lee
Sub-Editors : Dr Lawrence Ng
:  Dr David Cheong
Editorial Consultants : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
: A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow
Administrative Editor :  Ms Linda Marelie (till 31 March 2011)

Ms Stella Teh (from | April 2011)
College Mirror

Editors :  Dr EuTieng Juoh Wilson
:  DrWongTien Hua
Editorial Board Members . Dr Goh Tze Chien Kelvin

(in alphabetical order) : Dr Kiran Kashyap
:  Dr Loke Wai Chiong
Dr See Toh Kwok Yee
Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
Dr Shiau Ee Leng
Dr Yee Jenn Jet Michael

Advisors : A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock
Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan

Editorial Executive ¢ Ms Linda Marelie (till 31 March 201 1)
Ms Stella Teh (from | April 201 1)

The Singapore Family Physician (SFP) Journal

The editorial team was put to very hard work this year. A total of seven issues were processed and published during this
period. Kudos goes to the Editorial Team and for the tireless efforts of the reviewers and Secretariat.

The SFP Journals listed below were published in the past one year:

Vaccinations 2010: What’s Old, What’s New —Vol 36 No 2,Apr-Jun 2010

Cardiovascular Disease, Risk Factors and Consequences —Vol 36 No 3, Jul-Sep 2010
Primary Care Mental Health —Vol 36 No 4, Oct-Dec 2010

Management of Family Violence —Vol 37 No |, Jan-Mar 201 |

Oral Health in Primary Care —Vol 37 No | (Supplement), Jan-Mar 201 |

On-line Notifications and E-Services Platforms —Vol 37 No 2,Apr-Jun 201 |

Management of Functional Decline in Older Adults —Vol 37 No 2 (Supplement), Apr-Jun 201 |

Nouhswd -

With the implementation of the online Editorial Manager in February 2010, the efficiency of the management of submitted
articles has been greatly enhanced.

Since February 2010, the total number of articles submitted to the Editorial Manager was 54. 31 articles were accepted, there
were |3 incomplete submissions, 6 were withdrawn, 3 were sent back for revision and | remains under review.The time taken
to process each article will still need to be improved and we will be aiming to streamline this in the coming year.

The number of original articles accepted for publication under ORIGINAL PAPER section in SFP was 9.The quality of articles
has improved perceptibly with each submission. It is the hope of the Editorial Board that more of our colleagues will contribute
to writing and submitting original articles to the SFP.
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SFP Review Board

Very often, much of the work of a peer-reviewed medical journal is unseen, and the review process is one such process. Our
reviewers are a dedicated group of individuals who contribute their time and expertise to review our articles. Many of them
are leaders in their field and we are indeed privileged to have them on board.We would therefore like to extend a sincere
word of thanks to all the members of our SFP Review Board. Our first year of online peer-review was successful largely as a
result of the excellent and timely reviews by our reviewers.

Our Members are:

Medical Disciplines Surgical Disciplines Family Medicine
A/P Calvin Fones A/P Mahesh Choolani A/P Lee Kheng Hock

l. I l.

2. A/P Fabian Yap 2. A/P Tang Choong Leong 2. A/P Teng Cheong Lieng
3. A/P Koo Wen Hsin 3. A/P Thomas Loh 3. Dr Gong Swee Choo

4. A/P Loo Chian Min 4. Dr Chan Beng Kuen 4. Dr Leong Choon Kit

5. A/P Ong Sin Tiong 5. Dr Chong Tsung Wen 5. Dr Loong Tze Wey

6. A/P Pang Weng Sun 6. Dr Clifton Chan 6. Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
7. A/P Quek Swee Chye 7. Dr Doric Wong 7. Dr Rukshini Puvanendran
8. A/P Rajasoorya C 8. Dr Low Yee 8. Dr Seetoh Kwok Yee

9. A/P Tan Huay Cheem 9. Dr Peter Goh 9. Dr Tan Chee Beng

10. Dr Adela Tow 10. Dr Tan Mann Hong 10. Dr Tan Ngiap Chuan

I Dr Amy Stebbings 1. Dr Teoh Seng Hin . Dr Tay Ee Leong

12. Dr Chai Hwee Pin

13. Dr Christopher Khor International Panel

14. Dr Eric Hong l. A/P Annie Francisco

I5. Dr Gunasegaran K. 2. A/P Ron Tomlins

16. Dr Ho King Hee 3. Prof Edmond Chiu

17. Dr Malcolm Mahadevan 4. Dr Monsur Habib

18. Dr Ong Kian Chung 5. Dr Tan Tze Ching

The SFP’s role in providing CME is of great importance to our members and readers and this it continues to fulfill very well
indeed. The Journal is also a platform for our colleagues to publish articles and this role is slowly but surely becoming more
important. As more original articles are submitted, we would also like to encourage submissions of case reports, letters to
the editor and book to our journal.

Though writing may appear a daunting task, it is actually not that difficult to make observations, put pen to paper and then
submit through the Editorial Manager. If any fledgling authors out there have concerns about writing and submitting an article,
please feel free to approach any of our Editorial Board who will be most happy to lend an ear and give advice.

College Mirror and Digest

During the term of the present Council, the College Digest was launched in July 2010.The aims of this electronic newsletter
were to:

= Establish an on-line communication path between College and its members

= Maintain a current email database

= Add value to being a College member

= Provide timely and useful electronic tools and references

The College Digest is published four times a year, in the month immediately following the College Mirror, i.e. January, April,
July and October. It is emailed to College members only. About 1400 are on the email database.

The College Mirror continues to be the main College bulletin. It reaches an audience of 5400 including members, other
doctors in the community and in hospitals and polyclinics.

Sadly, we bid adieu to our long serving staff Ms Linda Marelie who took care of the editorial and publishing needs of the SFP
and the College for the past 5 years. She had overseen the College’s publications, was instrumental in getting them to print
and for this, we offer our heartfelt thanks.We welcome Ms Stella Teh who has taken over Ms Linda Marelie’s portfolio. She
will henceforth answer all your editorial and publication queries.

Lastly, a word of thanks to A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan, Dr Wong Tien Hua, Dr Shiau Ee Leng, Dr
Eu Tieng Juoh Wilson, members of the Editorial Board and College Secretariat for their untiring efforts in producing each
issue on time. | would also like to thank the authors who contributed their excellent articles for our family physicians.The
SFP Journal and College Mirror have become all the richer for your efforts.

Dr Tan Tze Lee

Chairman & Honorary Editor
Publications Committee
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REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Chairman . A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Members : A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock
: DrTan See Leng

TERMS OF REFERENCE

This Committee was set up in July 2001 with the following terms of reference:

. To advise the College Council on developments in Family Medicine in the international scene;
2. To implement activities decided by Wonca World & Wonca Asia Pacific Region;

3. To implement bilateral activities in Family Medicine teaching, research and practice.

FAMILY MEDICINE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE INTERNATIONAL SCENE

The 19thWoncaWorld Conference was held from 19 — 23 May 2010 in Cancun, Mexico. One of the important events was the
taking office of the new team for the triennium 2010 to 2013. Dr Alfred Loh remains at the helm as CEO of Wonca. Professor
Richard Roberts is the World President. The President Elect is Professor Michael Kidd. The Regional President for Wonca Asia
Pacific Region is Dr Donald Li.The new Wonca News Editor is Dr Karen Flagg. The other office bearers are listed in the VWonca
News August 2010 issue page 21.

In his Presidential Address, Professor Richard Roberts paid tribute to the work done by the outgoing President, Professor Chris
van Weel. Chris travelled extensively to meet the family doctors around the world during his term of Wonca President and is
well-known to many. For his contributions to Wonca as President and his many contributions to VWWonca over the years, he was
awarded Honorary Direct Life Membership of Wonca. His landmark contributions were: being the WHO Liaison person for
Wonca, ICPC classification of medical conditions, the WHO Mental Health Report, the Young Doctors Movement and Primary
Care Research. He has visited Singapore on several occasions during his term of office and before that.

The next World Conference will be held in Prague, Czech Republic in June 2013.The dates are 26 — 29 June.

ACTIVITIES IN ASIA PACIFIC REGION

There were two significant activities in the Asia Pacific Region in the year under review.

(1) Second Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference

The Second Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference was held from 4 - 5 December 2010 in Singapore at the Gallery
Hotel. It was well attended with |16 paid delegates from Singapore, Malaysia, Japan, Australia, Bangladesh, Thailand, India, Hong
Kong and Myanmar.

The Second Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference achieved what it set out to do, namely, attracted attendance to a
Primary Care Research Conference by making it a positive experience, just like the predecessor Conference in Melaka, Malaysia
in 2009.There was research learning and teaching: the four tracks of research learning and teaching in this Conference were
successful. The presentations of the output from the Research Championship bore the effects of the polishing by the coaches
in each of the four presentations made. We look forward to the research questions being answered by the next Research
Conference in 2011 which will be hosted by Malaysia.

Congratulations go to the winners of the Second Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Competitions. The presentations had
much to tell about what has been found about Primary Care practice. The following are the winners:

Best Poster Award:

Ist - Dr Tin Myo Han (Myanmar)
2nd - MrWee Liang En (Singapore)
3rd - Mr Ray Lai Tian Rui (Singapore)
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Rajakumar Award — The Best Oral Presentation:

Ist - A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow (Singapore)
2nd - A/Prof Nik Sherina Hanafi (Malaysia)
3rd - Dr Tan Kok Heng Adrian (Singapore)

Wong Heck Sing Award — The Best Oral Presentation from students and trainees:

Mr Wee Liang En (Singapore)

Research Championship 2010 — The Awards on Research Question and Study Design:

Ist - Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter & Dr Chang Ngai Kin Christopher (Singapore)

2nd - Dr Low Lian Leng & Dr Ang Yee Gary (Malaysia)

3rd - Dr Ngieng Kiong Kiong, Dr Kok Sim Hui & Dr Lenny Martini Bte Hamden (Malaysia)

Tie for 3rd - Dr Peter Sathiyanathan, Dr Abdul Hafiz Mohamad Ghani & Dr Kong Sie Zin (Malaysia)

(2) Wonca Cebu 2011

The 201 | Wonca Asia Pacific Regional Conference was held on 20 - 24 February 2011 in Cebu, Philippines. The theme
was “Paradigms in Family Medicine: Bridging Old Traditions with New Concepts”.Wonca Cebu was unique in that it was a
“four-in-one” activity: | 8th Wonca Asia Pacific regional conference, 10th Wonca Rural Health world conference, the Golden
Anniversary of the Philippine Academy of Family Physicians (PAFP) and the Silver Anniversary of the Foundation for Family
Educators.

Of special note at this Conference was the paper submitted by DrTan Ngiap Chuan entitled “Treat to target approach in managing
modifiable risk factors of patients with coronary heart disease in primary care setting in Singapore.Vhat are the issues” won
second prize in the Wonca Asia pacific and Chinese Taipei Association Research Contest, Oral category. Congratulations go
to DrTan Ngiap Chuan.

BILATERAL ACTIVITIES IN FAMILY MEDICINE TEACHING, RESEARCH AND PRACTICE

(I) Reciprocal recognition of the FRACGP and the FCFP(S)

The memorandum on the reciprocal recognition of the FRACGP and the FCFP(S) was signed on Wednesday, 6 October 2010
at the Cairns Convention Centre between The Royal Australian College of General Practitioners and the College of Family
Physicians Singapore.

The signing ceremony celebrates the decision of reciprocal recognition of the fellowships of the two Colleges, and leads to
the award of the FRACGP by Fellowship ad eundum gradum to those with FCFP(S) who wish to apply and are working in
Australia.

The signing ceremony in Cairns was witnessed by the Council members of the RACGP and heads of delegations from sister
Colleges attending the Annual Scientific Meeting and Academic session of the RACGP. As President | paid tribute to the
contributions of the leaders in the RACGP who were instrumental in helping the Singapore College to be formed and also in
the development of the academic programme in general/ family practice in Singapore.The College of Family Physicians Singapore
was also represented by Associate Professor Tan Boon Yeow.

Professor Wesley Fabb, former CEO of Wonca and his wife Marian were also present. Professor Fabb gave a brief history of
the long relationship between the Australian and Singapore Colleges.

The four signatories to the memorandum were: Dr Chris Mitchell, President of RACGP, Associate Professor Jan Radford,
Censor-in-Chief of RACGP Associate Professor Goh Lee Gan, President of College of Family Physicians Singapore and Associate
Professor Tan Boon Yeow, Censor-in-Chief of College of Family Physicians Singapore.

Through this memorandum, holders of the FCFP(S) who wish to apply for the FRACGP and are working in Australia can do
so. Holders of the FRACGP as we understand will be recognised to be eligible to be in the Family Physicians’ Register when
this is set up by MOH later this year.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Chairman
International Committee
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REPORT OF THE UNDERGRADUATE TEACHING COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Dr Ajith Damodaran

Chairman

Members

The new Undergraduate programme in the Yong Loo Lin School has made a quantum leap with its new MIIl Programme.There
were 5 postings in MIll namely, Family Medicine, Medicine, Paediatrics, Orthopaedics, and General Surgery. Each posting is 8
weeks in length. The students are divided into 5 batches (Batches A, B, C, D, E) and the batches went through the postings as
a round robin.We will be completing Batch E of cohort 2010/2011 Mlll, as of 7 April 201 1.

The components in the 8 weeks Family Medicine for MIll are:
FP clinic — 2 weeks * Polyclinic — 2 weeks * Community Hospital & Rehab Unit in acute hospitals — | week ¢ Palliative Care
— | week « Community Medicine — | week ¢ End of Posting Test

Family Medicine is one of the 5 disciplines in the MIll end of year examination.This examination consists of 12 MEQs, 120 MCQs,
and a clinical examination of | clinical reasoning station, 4 clinical skills stations and | clinical skills investigations station.
Note that family medicine is now a posting of 8 weeks which of the same length as the other rotating disciplines in MllI.

Thanks are due to the FM Tutors in the FP Clinics, in the Polyclinics, as well as trainers in the community hospital, palliative
care, as well as rehab medicine.

LIST OF FM TUTORS -2010/2011

Private Practitioners

l. Dr Kharian Mohd 36. Dr Low Cheng Hong Charity
2. Dr Lye Tong Fong 37. Dr Low Chee Wah Mark
3. Dr Ng May Mei 38.  Dr Loke Foo Shi Kelly
4. Dr Chong Chun Choy Vincent 39. Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian
5. DrTanTze Lee 40. Dr Lim Chien Wei
6. Dr Hui Meng Tong 41. Dr Sarani Bte Omar
7. Dr Kashyap Kiran 42. Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan & Dr Wong Ming
8. Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin 43. Dr Ong Eu Jin, Roy
9. Dr Kwong Kum Hoong 44.  Dr Nor Azhar Bin Mohd Zam
10. Dr Lau Siew Kee 45. Dr Ng Juak Cher
1. Dr Lau Teh Yee 46. Dr Ng Chiew Fang
12. Dr Lee-Oh Chong Leng 47.  Dr Low Mun Heng Gerard
13. Dr Lee Tzu Hooi 48. Dr Wong Liang Fu
14. Dr Leong Goh Han Gregory 49. DrWee Chee Chau
15.  Dr Leong Choon Kit 50.  DrTeo Yee ShengVictor
16. Dr Yap Siong Yew Mark 5l Dr Teo Boon See
17. Dr Chin En Loy Conrad 52. Dr Tay Guan Yu Jeff
18. Dr Chow Yew Choong Vincent 53. Dr Tan Kok Eng
19. Dr Chua Thiam Eng 54. Dr Tan Chi Beng Melvyn
20. Dr Chui Peng Leong 55. Dr Tan Beng Teck
21. Dr Fong Chun Ho 56. Dr Soh Soon Beng
22. Dr Eng Soo Kiang 57. Dr Soh Eng Liong Lawrence
23. Dr Gan Tek Kah 58. DrYeo Peng Hock Henry
24. Dr Hui Keem Peng John 59. DrYap Soo Kor Jason
25. Dr Leong Peng Fai Samuel 60. Dr Wong Ted Min
26. Dr Adam Patrick 6l. DrWoon Chee Hong
27. Dr Goh Chee Hwei 62. DrWong Mun Chong
28. Dr Goh Tiong Jin 63. Dr Yong Wei Lik
29. Dr Ajith Damodaran 64. Dr Tham Tuck Seng
30. Dr Ang Choon Kiat Alvin 65. Dr Kwek Thiam Soo
31 Dr Chang Tou Liang 66. Dr Koh Kheng Keah Philip
32.  Dr Chia Swee Heong Daniel 67.  DrTeow Kay Leong Roy
33. Dr Chiam Yih Hsing John 68. Dr Chng Shih Kiat
34. Dr Low How Cheong 69. Dr Lee Khai Weng Michael
35.  Dr Low Choon Kiat Paul 70.  DrYeo Kwee Kee Anne
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71. Dr Chong Chin Kwang
72. Dr Teo Su Lin Pearlie
73. Dr Ng Siau Peng

74. Dr Sim Kok Peng

75. Dr Hui SengYin Toby
76. Dr Lee Wen Yan

77. Dr Koh Thuan Wee

78. Dr Chan Miow Swan
79. Dr Goh Shu Huey

80. Dr Lam Wai Khin

8l. Dr Tham Tat Yean

82. Dr Lee Meng Kam Richard

Tutors from Singhealth Polyclinic
Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
Dr Ng Chung Wai

Dr Ng Lai Peng

Dr Oh Guat Leng

Dr Phoon Kwong Yun lan
Dr Quah Hui Min Joanne
Dr Ratnaporn Siriamornsarp
Dr Shah Mitesh

9. Dr Sng Wei Kwan

10. Dr Soo Wern Fern

1. Dr Swah Teck Sin

12. Dr Tan Yew Sang

13. Dr Ting Sing Shing Jonathan
14. Dr Tse Wan Lung Derek
15. Dr Wee Kien Han Andrew
16. Dr Wong Song Ung

17. Dr Goh Soo Chye Paul

18. Dr How Choon How

19. Dr Juliana Bahadin

20. Dr Chan Meng Huey Jason
21. Dr Chang Ngai Kin Christopher
22. Dr Chow Mun Hong

23. Dr Ng Chee Chin David
24. Dr Ee Guan Liang Adrian
25. Dr Lim Hwee Boon

26. Dr Tay Ee Guan

27. Dr Tan Chee Beng

28. Dr Goh Lay Hoon

29. Dr Tan Choon Seng Gilbert
30. Dr Tan Ngiap Chuan

31. Dr Hwang Siew Wai

©® N A WD —

Tutors from NHG Polyclinic
Dr Benjamin Cheah

I
2. Dr Yeo Huinan
3. Dr Ang Lai Lai
4. Dr Lew Yii Jen
5.

Dr Zheng Mingli

List of Palliative Care Tutors
Dr Deborah Watkinson
Dr Shirlynn Ho

Dr Norhisham Main
DrYong Woon Chai
DrYiYiWynn

Dr Koh Lip Hoe

Dr Poi Choo Hwee

Dr Tan Yew Seng

9. Dr Khin Khin Win

10. Dr Lee Chung Seng

1. Dr Patricia Neo Soek Hui
12. Dr Ong Wah Ying

13. Dr Allyn HumYin Mei

14. Dr Mervyn Koh

15. Dr Chong Poh Heng

© N LA WN —

Thanks are also due to the coordinators and secretariat staff in

A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
Chairman
Undergraduate Teaching Committee

Dr Ong Yew Jin

Dr Ng Han Lip Raymond
Dr Yang Sze Yee

A/Prof Cynthia Ruth Goh
Dr Lalit Krishna

Dr Alethea Yee

Dr Pang SuYin Grace

Dr Lee Onn Kei Angel
DrWu Huei Yaw

Dr Koh Nien Yue

Dr lan LeongYi Onn
A/Prof Pang Weng Sun

Dr James Alvin Low Yiew Hock
Dr Angeline Seah Soek Tian
Dr Noreen Chan

Dr Kok Jaan Yang

Dr R Akhileswaran

List of Community Hospital/Rehab Tutors

© NV A WD —

—_——— — — — — — — 0
©NOUVhAhWN —OF

19.

A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow
Dr Chia Tee Hien
Dr Chua Chi Siong
Dr Ngeow Colin

Dr Chong Tsung Wei
Dr Kelvin Koh

Dr Kevin Awyong
Dr Sherry Young

Dr Shrikant Pande
Dr Roy Lee

Dr Tay San San

Dr Irwin C A Chung
Dr Kenny Tan

Dr Kelvin Phua

Dr Diana Chan

Dr Tjan SoonYin

Dr Deshan Kumar
Dr Tham Shuen Loong
Dr Loh Yong Joo

Dr Kong Keng He
Dr Chan Kay Fei

Dr Karen Chua

Dr Kala Kanagasabai
Dr Cheong Seng Kwing
Dr Edward Menon
Dr Adrian Tan

Dr Goh Teck Kheng
Dr Jung Heeyoune
Dr ChiongYi

Dr Bok Chek Wai
Dr Tan Yeow Leng
Dr Peter Lim

Dr NgYee Sien

Dr Effie Chew

Dr Eve Anwar

List of Full and Part-time Departmental Staff
for 2009/2010

© N U A WN

10.

12.
13.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Adj A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
Adj A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
Adj A/Prof Tan Boon Yeow
Dr Victor Loh

Dr Wong Teck Yee

Dr Helen Leong Soh Sum
Dr Ruth Lim

Dr Adrian Tan

Dr Tham Tat Yean

Dr Anne Yeo

Dr Chin Khong Ling

Dr Ong Wah Ying

the various organisations.
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REPORT OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2010 - 31 MARCH 2011

Chairman : Dr Lim Fong Seng
Members : A/Prof Lee Kheng Hock
Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan

We are pleased to report that the College is on a firm financial footing during the period | April 2010 to 3| March 201 1.

Revenue from our courses and seminars contributed to 46.7% of our total revenue. Sponsorships contributed 23.2% to our
total revenue while subscriptions contributed another 15.5%.These 3 items together account for 85.4% of our revenue.

College recorded an accumulated surplus of $ 401,504 brought about by a gross revenue of $1,403,379 and an expenditure
of $ 1,001,875.

Dr Lim Fong Seng

Honorary Treasurer
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
(REGISTERED IN SINGAPORE)

UEN NO. §71850039]

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MarcH 2011




COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: §71SS0039J

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

On behalf of the Management Committee of the of Family Physicians Singapore (the
“College”), we, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan and Dr Lim Fong Seng, being the President and
Honorary Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the College are properly
drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and the College as at 31 March 2011 and of the results, changes in
accumulated and miscellaneous funds and revaluation reserve and cash flows of the

Group and the College for the financial year ended on that date.

On behalf of Management Committee:

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
PRESIDENT

Seng
TREASURER

Date: 20th May 2011
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V.P.KUMARAN & CO ‘ I L S aE ROAD
° ° #16-04 PENINSULA PLAZA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS SINGAPORE 179098

TEL : 63376485 (3 LINES)

FAX : 63396517
EMAIL : vpkco@singnet.com.sg

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of College of Family Physicians
Singapore (the “College”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which comprise
the balance sheets of the Group and the College as at 31 March 2011, the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in accumulated fund, miscellaneous
funds and revaluation reserve and statements of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Management Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Management Committee is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (the
“Act’) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for internal control as
management committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management committee, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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V.P. KUMARAN & CO ' L R oy ROAD
° ° #16-04 PENINSULA PLAZA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS SINGAPORE 179098

TEL : 63376485 (3 LINES)

FAX : 63396517
EMAIL : vpkco@singnet.com.sg

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial
statements of the College are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the College as at 31 March 2011 and the results,
changes in accumulated fund, miscellaneous funds and revaluation reserve and cash
flows of the Group and College for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by
College have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

V.P.KUMARAN & CO.
Public Accountants and

Certified Public Accountants

Singapore,
20 May 2011
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment
Investment property
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Prepayments

Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables

Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Net assets

REPRESENTED BY:
Accumulated fund
Miscellaneous funds
Revaluation reserve

Note

N

10
11

12
13
14

2011

108,883
3,995,136
4,104,019

32,193
154,229
3,965,183
4,151,605

8,255,624

59,379
649,119
708,498

7,547,126

7,261,036
219,715
66,375
7,547,126

2010

133,761
4,078,368
4,212,129

28,593
114,855
3,262,732
3,406,180

7,618,309

53,646
419,041
472,687

7,145,622

6,859,532
219,715
66,375
7,145,622

The accompany notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

INCOME

Courses and seminars fees

Sponsorships

Subscriptions

Family Medicine Training Scheme Honorarium

Advertisements

Entrance fees

Traineeship fees - Joint Committee of Family
Medicine Training (JCFMT)

Over provision of grant in prior years

Rental income

Miscellaneous income

Total income

LESS: EXPENDITURE
Staff costs

Depreciation

Foreign exchange loss
Administrative expenses
Total expenditure

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR REPRESENTING TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Note

15

16

17
4,5

18

2011
$

655,671
325,000
217,980
1,944
10,330
21,550

132,000
38904
1,403,379

279,742
113,587
361
608,185
1,001,875

401,504

2010
$

800,182
241,500
238,620
23,333
11,290
9,900

3,469
(15,950)
355
72,663
1,385,362

216,787
114,983

430
515,205
847,405

537,957

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND,

MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS AND REVALUATION RESERVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Accumulated Miscellaneous Revaluation Total

Fund Funds Reserve equity
$ $ $ $

2011
Balance at beginning of year 6,859,532 219,715 66,375 7,145,622
Total comprehensive income

for the year 401,504 401,504
Balance at end of year 7,261,036 219,715 66,375 7,547,126
2010
Balance at beginning of year 6,321,575 219,715 66,375 6,607,665
Total comprehensive income

for the year 537,957 537,957
Balance at end of year 6,859,532 219,715 66,375 7,145,622

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: §71SS0039J

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Total comprehensive income for the year

Adjustments for:

De preciation 4.5
Interest income 16
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Prepayments

Receivables

Payables

Deferred revenue

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment

Purchase of investment property

Interest received

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of share capital

JCFMT Secretariat Fund
Net cash flows from financing activity

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9

2011
$

401,505

113,587
(11,310)
503,782

(3,600)
(39,375)
5,733
230,078
696,618

(5,477)

11,310
5,833

702,451
3,262,732
3,965,183

2010
$

537,957

114,983
(29,245)
623,695

(9,391)
210,519
38,130
(168,061)
694,892

(79,104)
(4,161,600)
29,245
(4,211,459)

3

17,086
17,089

(3,499,478)
6,762,210
3,262,732

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - COLLEGE

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiary
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Prepayments
Receivables

Amount due from CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables

Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Net assets

REPRESENTED BY:
Accumulated fund
Miscellaneous funds
Revaluation reserve

Note

N

10
11

12
13
14

2011

108,883
3
108,886

31,393
142,825
4,181,348
3,844,864
8,200,430

8,309,316

18,019
649,119
667,138

7,642,178

7,356,088
219,715
66,375
7,642,178

2010

133,761
3
133,764

27,475
114,855
4,181,328
3,242,726
7,566,384

7,700,148

26,286
419,041
445,327

7,254,821

6,968,731
219,715
66,375
7,254,821

The accompany notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

39

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

UEN NO.: S718SS0039J

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - COLLEGE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

INCOME

Courses and seminars fees
Sponsorships
Subscriptions

Family medicine training scheme honorarium

Advertisements

Entrance fees

Traineeship fees - JCFMT

Over provision of grant in prior years
Miscellaneous income

Total income

LESS: EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Depreciation

Foreign exchange loss
Administrative expenses
Total expenditure

Note

15

16

17

18

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR REPRESENTING TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2011

655,671
325,000
217,980
1,944
10,330
21,550

38,561
1,271,036

279,742
30,355
361
573,221
883,679

387,357

2010

800,182
241,500
238,620

23,333
11,290
9,900
3,469
(15,950)
72,660
1,385,004

216,787
31,751
430
488,880
737,848

647,156

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: 871SS0039J

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND,

MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS AND REVALUATION RESERVE - COLLEGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Accumulated Miscellaneous Revaluation Total

Fund Funds Reserve equity
$ $ $ $

2011
Balance at beginning of year 6,968,731 219,715 66,375 7,254,821
Total comprehensive income

for the year 387,357 387,357
Balance at end of year 7,356,088 219,715 66,375 7,642,178
2010
Balance at beginning of year 6,321,575 219,715 66,375 6,607,665
Total comprehensive income

for the year 647,156 647,156
Balance at end of year 6,968,731 219,715 66,375 7,254,821

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - COLLEGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Total comprehensive income for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 4
Interest income 16
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Prepayments

Receivables

Payables

Deferred revenue

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Amount due from CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd.
Purchase of plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

JCFMT Secretariat Fund
Net cash flows from financing activity

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9

2011
$

387,357

30,355
(10,967)
406,745

(3,918)
(27,970)
(8,267)
230,078
596,668

(20)
(5,477)
10,967
5,470

602,138
3,242,726
3,844,864

2010
$

647,156

31,751
(29,242)
649,665

(8,273)
210,519
10,770
(168,061)
694,620

(4,181,328)
(79,104)
29,242
(4,231,190)

17,086
17,086

(3,519,484)
6,762,210
3,242,726

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Management Committee on
20 May 2011.

1)

2)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

The College of Family Physicians Singapore (the “College”) is registered in the
Republic of Singapore under the Societies Act Cap 151 and has its registered
office and principal place of business at:

16 College Road
# 01-02 College of Medicine Building
Singapore 169854

The principal activities of the College are

i) Advance the art and science of medicine

i) Discuss medical and scientific problems

1ii) Assist in providing post graduate study courses

iv) Arrange for and/or provide instructions for undergraduate or post
graduate students

V) Promote and maintain high standards of family practice of
medicine.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
as disclosed in the significant accounting policies in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currenc

These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars which is the
College’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Singapore
dollars has been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires
Management Committee to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

43

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

2)
(d)

(e)

3)

(a)

44

Basis of preparation (continued)
Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 2(d), Management Committee had made the following judgements that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts are based on an assessment of the
recoverability of receivables. Allowances are applied to receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expected outcome is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed (see Note 7).

Change in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except for the adoption of new or revised accounting standards
and interpretations which are mandatory for the annual financial year beginning
on or after 1 April 2010.

The adoption does not have a significant impact on the accounting policies and
measurement bases adopted by the College.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these financial statements, and have been applied
consistently by College.

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

The College initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date
at which the College becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The College derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the College is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 MARCH 2011

3) Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the College has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The College has the following non-derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables including cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise receivables and amount due from College of
Family Physicians Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits.
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the College
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The College derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the College has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

The College has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: payables.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

3)

(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
presently exercisable are taken in to account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences where necessary to align them with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the College

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are started in the College’s balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a
working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised
borrowing costs. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive
income of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of plant and equipment. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and
equipment, and are recognised net within other income in statement of
comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
the revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

3)
(c)

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the College and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an
asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of plant and
equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:

o Furniture, fittings and renovation 3 to 5 years
° Office equipment 1 to 3 years
. Other assets 3 to 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property is measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an
existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met and excluded the costs of day-to day servicing of an investment
property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost
and is subject to depreciation.

Investment property is derecognised when either they have been disposed of or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the profit and
loss account in the year of retirement or disposal.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

3)

(e)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment
Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the College on terms
that the College would not consider otherwise or an indications that a debtor will
enter bankruptcy.

The College considers evidence of impairment for receivables both a specific
asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed for
specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together
receivables with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the College uses historical trends of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for Management Committee’s judgement as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive income and
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. When a subsequent event
causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment
loss is reversed through statement of comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions to Central Provident Fund (CPF) and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in statement of comprehensive income in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees.
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UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

3)

(g)

(b)

1}

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
rendering of services in the ordinary course of the College’s activities.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the College and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Members’ annual subscription are recognised when due.

Course fees, seminar fees (from continuing professional education and training)
and entrance fees are recognised when the services are rendered.

Advertising income is recognised when advertisements are placed.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest
rate method unless collectibility is in doubt.

Management Committee fee charged by the College is recognised when due.
Grants and sponsorships

Grants and sponsorships are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant or sponsorship will be received and all
attaching condition will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the periods necessary to match them on a
systematic basis, to the costs, which it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in statement of comprehensive income, using the
effective interest method.

Government grants

Jobs Credit Scheme

Cash grants received from the government in relation to the Jobs Credit Scheme
are recognised as income upon receipt.
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UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

3) Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Income tax expenses

The College has been registered as a Society under the Societies Act. With effect
from the Year of Assessment 2008, the requirement for Society to spend at least
80% of their annual receipts on charitable objects in Singapore within 2 years in
order to enjoy income tax exemption has been removed. As a registered and
exempt charity it will enjoy automatic income tax exemption.

(1) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective for the period beginning 1 April 2010 have not been applied in

preparing these financial statements. None of these will have a significant effect
on the financial statements of the College upon initial application.

4) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group and College FURNITURE,
FITTINGS
AND OFFICE OTHER
2011 RENOVATION EQUIPMENT ASSETS TOTAL
$ $ $ $
Cost/valuation
At beginning of year 146,880 55,417 90,200 292,497
Additions 5,477 5,477
At end of year 146,880 60,894 90,200 297,974

Accumulated depreciation

At beginning of year 91,231 49,465 18,040 158,736

Charge for the year 18,488 2,847 9,020 30,355

At end of year 109,719 52,312 27,060 189,091

Net Book Value

At cost 37,161 8,582 45,743

At valuation 63,140 63,140
37,161 8,582 63,140 108,883
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UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

4) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

S)

Group and College FURNITURE,
FITTINGS
AND OFFICE OTHER

2010 RENOVATION EQUIPMENT ASSETS

$ $ $
Cost/valuation
At beginning of year 135,909 201,437 144,888
Additions 72,104 7,000
Write off (61,133) (153,020) (54,688)
At end of year 146,880 55,417 90,200
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 133,150 198,968 63,708
Charge for the year 19,214 3,517 9,020
Write off 61,1 (153,020) (54,688)
At end of year 91,231 49,465 18,040
Net Book Value
At cost 55,649 5,952
At valuation 72,160

55,649 5,952 72,160

TOTAL

482,234

79,104
(268,841)
292,497

395,826
31,751

(268,841)
158,736

61,601
72,160
133,761

Other assets include paintings and potteries. The potteries and paintings are
stated at valuation of $63,140 (2010 : $72,160).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY - FREEHOLD

Cost

At beginning of year
Addition

At end of year

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year
Addition

At end of year

Net book value

Group
2011 2010
$ $
4,161,600
4 161 600
4,161,600 4,161,600
83,232
83,232 83,232
166,464 83,232
3,995,136 4,078,368

Management is of the opinion that the above carrying amount represents the fair
value of the investment property and there is no indication of impairment loss.
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UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

6)

7)

College
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 2011 2010
$ $
Unguoted equity share, at cost
At beginning and end of year 3 3
Details of subsidiary is as follows: Effective interest

held by the Group
2011 2010
Name of subsidiary Countrv of incorporation % %

CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100 100

The investment in subsidiary is held in trust by trustees.

In 2011, the subsidiary is consolidated based on unaudited management
accounts as the audited financial statements of the subsidiary was not made
available.

RECEIVABLES
Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $
Security deposit 6,550 6,450 6,450 6,450
Accounts receivable 147,679 98,400 136,375 98,400
Interest receivable 10,005 10,005

154,229 114,855 142,825 114,855

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days

terms. They are recognised at their invoice amounts which represent their fair
values on initial recognition.

There are no accounts receivable overdue but not impaired as at the financial
year ends.

All outstanding receivables as at 31 March 2011 are considered recoverable and
no allowance of doubtful debts is required.

In current year, accounts receivable of $10,005 of the College was written-off
during the year as it was not recoverable.

The carrying values of receivables approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

8)

9)

JOINT COMMITTEE OF FAMILY MEDICINE TRAINING (“JCFMT”) SECRETARIAT
FUND

College
2011 2010
$ $
Funding reimbursements received - 32,511
Less: Expenditure incurred
Operating costs (5,706)
Manpower costs (26,805)

(32,511)
Net expenditure to be reimbursed

The JCFMT Secretariat was set up to review the training needs of the College.

The Ministry of Health (MOH) provided funding to the Secretariat for start up
and for recurring expenditures in the first three years.

In 2010, the funds were disbursed on a reimbursement basis and there were no
subsequent funding received.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $
Cash on hand 3 3
Cash at banks
- Current account 955,180 662,729 844,864 642,726
- Fixed deposits 3,010,000 2,600,000 3,000,000 2,600,000

3,965,183 3,262,732 3,844,864 3,242,726

Included in cash and cash equivalents is an amount of $3,826 (2010:$2,045) of
the College denominated in US dollars.

The College average maturity period for fixed deposits is 6 months (2010:3
months) and the average interest rate at the end of the financial year is 0.32%
(2010:0.43%) per annum.

The fixed deposits include monies received and held under miscellaneous funds
(Note 13}.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

10) PAYABLES

Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $

Accounts payable 5,095 11,722 5,095 11,722
Bill in advance 11,000

Rental deposit received 22,000 22,000

Accrued charges 21,281 19,921 12,921 14,561
Other payable 3 3 3 3

59,379 53,646 18,019 26,286

Accounts payable
Accounts payable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 days
terms.

The carrying values of payables approximate their fair values.

11) DEFERRED REVENUE
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Subscription received in advance 163,980 -
Course fees received in advance 485,139 419,041

649,119 419,041

12) ACCUMULATED FUND

Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of year 6,859,532 6,321,575 6,968,731 6,321,575
Total comprehensive 401,504 537,957 387,357 647,156
income for the year
Balance at end of year 7,261,036 6,859,532 7,356,088 6,968,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011
13) MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS

Group and College
2011 2010

$ $
Victor Louis Fernandez Fellowship Fund (Note 13.1) 30,891 30,891
Albert & Mary Lim Award Fund (Note 13.2) 565 565
Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine Fund (Note 13.3) 188,259 188,259

219,715 219,715

13.1) Victor Louis Fernandez Fellowship Fund
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Balance at beginning and at end of year 30,891 30,891

13.2) Albert & Mary Lim Award Fund
Group and College
2011 2010

$ $

Balance at beginning of year and end of year 565 565

13.3) Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine Fund
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Balance at beginning and end of year 188,259 188 259

14) REVALUATION RESERVE
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Balance at beginning and end of year 66.375 66,375

Revaluation reserve arose from revaluation of potteries and paintings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

15) SPONSORSHIPS
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference 32,000
Astrazeneca Singapore Pte Ltd 50,000
Boehringer Ingelheim Singapore Pte Ltd 50,000
Glaxo Smithkline Pte Ltd 50,000
Health Promotion Board 113,000 50,000
Health Science Authority 8,000
Lundbeck Export A/S 31,500
Ministry of Community Development, Youth and Sports 25,000 78,000
Ministry of Health 33,875
Ministry of Manpower 13,125
Sonofi-Aventis Singapore Pte Ltd 32,000

325,000 241.500

16) MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $
Interest received 11,310 29,245 10,967 29,242
Convention dinner 4,550 22,830 4,550 22,830
Management fees 418 418
Photocopy 35 35
Sundry income 23,044 20,135 23,044 20,135
38,904 72,663 38,561 72,660

Included in sundry income is an amount of $3,497 (2010:$19,229) from the
Jobs Credit Scheme.

17) STAFF COSTS
Group and College

2011 2010
$ $
Salaries and bonus 233,448 187,757
CPF and Skills development levy 34,845 26,657
Insurance 10,211 969
Medical expenses 1238 1404

279,742 216,787
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

18) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Group College
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $

Accountancy fee 34,800 33,116 27,600 25,916
Advertisement 376 179 376 179
Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference 40,311 40,311 -
Auditors' remuneration 7,500 7,200 4,000 3,700
Bad debt written off 10,005 10,005 -
Bank charges 1,651 165 1,621 165
College Mirror - magazine printing charges 26,306 50,979 26,306 50,979
Consultancy fees (Note 19) 61,000 48,000 61,000 48,000
Convocation dinner expenses 36,795 29,070 36,795 29,070
E-learning subscription 10,000 10,000 -
Entertainment 2,137 2,137 -
Family Medicine Fellowship

Programme expenses 8,067 8,067
Family Medicine Training Scheme

honorarium expenses 9,198 17,633 9,198 17,633
Family Practices Skills Course expenses 25,244 47,170 25,244 47,170
Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine expenses 47,657 39,218 47,657 39,218
Incorporation fees 10,692
Internet and telephone charges 3,257 9,657 3,257 9,657
Maintenance and security charges 8,708 8,199 8,708 8,199
Master of Medicine in Family Medicine

Programme expenses 30,315 35,246 30,315 35,246
Members of College of Family

Physicians expenses 321 321
Membership fee 2,577 6,136 2,577 6,136
Miscellaneous expenses 14,928 18,124 13,391 17,454
Office expenses 4,560 4,307 4,560 4,307
Over provision of rental of office premises (6,634) (6,634}
Postages 4,797 10,079 4,797 10,079
Printing and stationery 24,826 10,128 24,078 9,768
Professional fee 1,600 439
Property tsx 10,600 28
Refreshment 6,690 7,486 6,690 7,486
Rental of office equipment 11,081 10,465 11,081 10,465
Rental of office premises 82,818 67,583 82,818 67,583
Repair and maintenance 5,761 5,952 5,242 5,952
Secretarial fee 3,230 3,436
Singapore Family Physician- magazine

printing charges 41,746 27,155 41,746 27,155
Tax fee 6,000
Training expenses 1,768 2,557 1,768 2,557
Transport 3,405 3,658 3,405 3,658
Travelling 10,754 1,775 10,754 1,775
Utilities 7,396 6,007 7,396 6,007

608,185 515,205 573.221 488,880
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

19) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

An entity or individual is considered a related party of the College for the
purposes of the financial statements if, i) it possesses the ability (directly or
indirectly) to control or exercise significant influence over the operating and
financial decisions of the College or vice versa, or ii) it is subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The College had the following related party transactions on terms agreed
between them as follows:

College
2011 2010
$ $
Amount due from CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd 4,181,348 4,181,328
Key management remuneration
Consultancy fee paid to members of
management committee 61,000 48,000

Amount due from CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd.
The amounts due from CFPS Holdings Pte. Ltd. are non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

20) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At statement of financial position date, the College was committed to making the
following payment in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for office
premises and photocopier machine with terms of more than one year:

College
2011 2010
$ $
Lease payable:
Within one year 77,400 86,893
More than one year but less than five years 70 950
77,400 157,843

During the year, an amount of $93,899 (2010:$71,414) was recognised as an
expense in profit or loss in respect of operating leases.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

21) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

a) Categories of financial instruments

The following table set out the financial instruments as at the end of financial

year:
Group Liabilities
at Non-
Loans and amortised financial
receivables cost assets Total
$ $ $ $
2011
Assets
Plant and equipment 108,883 108,883
Investment property 3,995,136 3,995,136
Prepayments 32,193 32,193
Receivables 147,679 6,550 154,229
Cash and cash equivalents 3,965,183 - 3,965,183
4,112,862 4,142,762 8,255,624
Liabilities
Payables 59,379 59,379
Deferred revenue 649,119 649,119
708,498 708,498
2010
Assets
Plant and equipment 133,761 133,761
Investment property 4,078,368 4,078,368
Prepayments 28,593 28,593
Receivables 108,405 6,450 114,855
Cash and cash equivalents 3,262,732 3,262,732
3,371,137 - 4,247,172 7,618,309
Liabilities
Payables - 53,646 - 53,646
Deferred revenue 419 041 419 041
472 687 472
59

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: §71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 MARCH 2011

21) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

a) Categories of financial instruments (continued)

The following table set out the financial instruments as at the end of financial

year:
College Liabilities
at Non-
Loans and amortised financial
receivables cost assets Total
$ $ $ $
2011
Assets
Plant and equipment 108,883 108,883
Investment in subsidiary 3 3
Prepayments 31,393 31,393
Receivables 136,375 6,450 142,825
Amount due from CFPS
Holdings Pte Ltd 4,181,348 4,181,348
Cash and cash equivalents 864 3 864
8,162,587 - 146,729 8,309,316
Liabilities
Payables 18,019 18,019
Deferred revenue 649,119 119
- 667,138 - 667,138
2010
Assets
Plant and equipment 133,761 133,761
Investment in subsidiary 3 3
Prepayments 27,475 27,475
Receivables 108,405 6,450 114,855
Amount due from CFPS
Holdings Pte Ltd 4,181,328 4,181,328
Cash and cash equivalents 3,242,726 3,242,726
7,532,459 - 167,689 7,700,148
Liabilities
Payables 26,286 26,286
Deferred revenue 419,041 41 1
445,327 445,327
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: S71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

21)

b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Financial risk Management Committee objectives and policies

The Management Committee reviews and agrees policies for managing the
financial risk of the College. Each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of
their agreements. Except for receivables, prepayments, cash and cash
equivalents and amount due from College of Family Physicians Singapore
Holdings Pte Ltd, the College has no major concentration of credit risk.

The College places its cash and fixed deposits with creditworthy institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements,
represents the College’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the Management Committee of liquidity risk, the College monitors and
maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed adequate by the
Management Committee to finance the College’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the
College at the statement financial position date on contractual undiscounted
obligations:

Group College
One year or less One year or less
$ $
As at 31.03.11
Payables 59.379 18,016
As at 30.03.10
Payables 53,646 26,283

Interest rate risk

The College’s exposure to market risk for charges in interest rates relates
primarily to the College’s fixed deposits. The College’s policy is to place surplus
funds in fixed deposits at favourable interest rates with financial institutions in
Singapore. The College’s exposure to changes in interest rate is minimal.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
UEN NO.: §71SS0039J

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2011

21)

b)

d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Financial risk Management Commaittee objectives and policies (continued)
Foreign exchange ris

The College’s operational activities are carried out in Singapore dollar, which is
the functional currency. The College’s maximum exposure to risk arising from
movements in currency exchange rates relates only to cash and cash equivalents
denominated in US dollars which has minimal impact on the surplus of the
College.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statements represents their respective fair values due to short-term
nature of these accounts.

Management Committee of College’s Funds

The College’s objective when managing funds are

(a) to safeguard the College’s ability to continue as a going concern; and

{(b) to support the College’s stability and growth

The College actively and regularly reviews and manages its fund management

policy to ensure optimal structure taking into consideration the future fund
requirements of the College.
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